
EduPortal Meeting Packet

 

Meeting Packet
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board Meeting

November 28, 2012 
7:00 PM

Packet page 1 of 81



EduPortal Meeting Agenda

EduPortal Meeting Agenda

(p. 31)

(Vote)VI.

(p. 27)

(Vote)V.

(p. 17)
(p. 16)
(p. 15)
(p. 4)

(Information)IV.

(Information)

III.

(Information)II.

(Vote)I.

 

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board Meeting

Steilacoom High School 54 Sentinel Drive Steilacoom, Washington

11/28/2012 7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of Agenda

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From
the Audience portion of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit
your comments to three (3) minutes. The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative nature
singling out specific employees, other than the Board or Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The
Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal attacks on individuals.

PRESENTATION

1. Pierce County Skill Center

Presenter: Sara Graves

REPORTS

Presenter: LeeRae Ball 

Financial Report.pdf
Capital Project Report.pdf
Cash Flow.pdf
Budget Status Report.pdf

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes 11.14.12.pdf

CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the consent agenda is to reduce time going through motion, second and voting on issues of common consent. Any Board member
can ask for any item to be removed from the consent agenda. There is no discussion of items on the consent agenda. By motion of the Board,
remaining items are approved without discussion as part of the consent agenda. Discussion of items removed from the consent agenda occurs
immediately following action on the consent agenda. 

Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf

Packet page 2 of 81



EduPortal Meeting Agenda

EduPortal Meeting Agenda

(Vote)XII.

(Information)XI.

(Action)X.

(Information)IX.

(p. 77)
(p. 65)

(Information)

(p. 50)

(Vote)

VIII.

(p. 48)

(Vote)

VII.

(p. 45)
(p. 33)Approval of November 2012 Accounts Payable.pdf

Approval of November 2012 Payroll.pdf

OLD BUSINESS

1. Second Reading of Policy 6803, District Flag Lowering

Presenter: Bill Fritz

2nd reading of Policy 6803.pdf

NEW BUSINESS

1. Pierce County Skills Center Agreement

Presenter: Bill Fritz and Sara Graves

Pierce County Skills Center Agreement.pdf

2. ALE Report 2011-12

Presenter: Bill Fritz

SHSD-WAVA ALE Report SY 2011-2012.pdf
Policy 2255 ALE.pdf

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From
the Audience portion of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit

The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative natureyour comments to three (3) minutes. 
singling out specific employees, other than the Board or Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The
Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal attacks on individuals.

BOARD COMMUNICATION

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

 The School Board normally convenes at 6:00 pm just prior to the start of the formal Board meeting, to discuss the BoardSTUDY SESSION:
agenda and to have a brief dinner. No decision making is undertaken. These study sessions are open to the Public; however, food is not provided
for the general public.

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District are digitally recorded.

Packet page 3 of 81



 November 2012  

Packet page 4 of 81



What is a SEFA & Purpose? 

- Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 

- Key essential document for planning & conducting 
annual audit 

- Provides assurance to awarding agencies that 
their awards have been included in the audit 

Are we required? 
- Yes.  Annual requirement of all School 

Districts and Government Offices.  

SEFA 

Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

Packet page 5 of 81



- Federal awards expended to include 

expenditures associated with grants; food 

service commodities; federal awards received 

directly or indirectly from federal agencies; 

 

- CFDA # (Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance); 

- Amount of award (or expenditure if less than 

award); total expenditures;  

- Federal Agency Name 

- Federal Program Title 
 

Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

What is reported on the SEFA? 

Packet page 6 of 81



 

- State Auditor’s Office (SAO) 

 

 

Deadline to SAO is – November 15, xxxx 

 

Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

Who is the report submitted to? 

Resources Available? 
- ABFR (Accounting & Budgeting Financial 

Reporting Manual) 

- Federal Website for CFDA #’s 

- Grant Award Notifications 

Packet page 7 of 81



SEFA FOR 2011-12 
Steilacoom Historical School District’s 

Schedule Expenditure Federal Award Update 

Packet page 8 of 81



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the year ending August 31, 2012

EXPENDITURES

Federal Agency Pass Through Federal Program Title CFDA Other ID From From Total State Rev Notes

Name Agency Number Number Direct Pass Thru #

Awards Awards

USDA WA OSPI SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM 10.553 27001ps $51,827.68 6198

NAT'L SCHOOL LUNCH

CASH ASSISTANCE 10.555 27001ps $248,333.10 6198

NON-CASH ASST - COMMODITIES 10.555 27001ps $43,876.95 6998

SUBTOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE $344,037.73 $344,037.73

U.S. DEPT OF PAYMENT TO STATES IN LIEU 12.112 540000008 $308,249.03

DEFENSE OF REAL ESTATE TAXES $61,546.47

$8,358.10

SUBTOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE $310,423.35 $310,423.35

U.S. DEPT OF Federal Forest Funds $2,174.32 3100

EDUCATION WA OSPI Title IA  Grants to LEAs 84.010 200894 $240,944.30 6151

SPECIAL EDUC - IDEA-B 84.027 304022 $479,441.09 6124

SPED 619 Flow 11-12 84.027 364022 $15,083.50 6124

Career & Technical Education -Basic 84.048 172402 $10,122.00 6138

Educational Technology State Grant 84.318 721898 $409.00 6152

Title III Limited English Proficient 84.365 522004 $4,825.34 6164

Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 523015 $96,474.98 6152

ARRA-T1A  CO Yr 3 84.389 240739 $60,798.91 6111 Note #2

 EDUCATION JOBS FUND 84.410 960246 $14,160.00 6113

SUBTOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION $922,259.12 $922,259.12

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH WA OSPI MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 93.778 $70.00 6124

& HUMAN SRVCS

SUBTOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES $70.00 $70.00

$312,597.67 $1,266,366.85 $1,576,790.20TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED
Packet page 9 of 81



Notes… 

 NOTE 1 - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is 

prepared on the same basis of accounting as the Steilacoom's 

financial statements. The district uses the modified accrual basis of 

accounting.  Expenditures represent only the federally funded 

portions of the program. District records should be consulted to 

determine amounts expended or matched from non-federal sources. 

 

 NOTE 2 - AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) of 

2009  Of the amount shown for this program, $60,798.91 was paid 

from ARRA funds.  

Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

Packet page 10 of 81



Capital Projects Fund Update 

Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE  09/01/11   

      $2,368,842.67 

  

 UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCE   

  $2,354,533.82  
 

 DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE (IMPACT FEES)  

       $336,993.57  
 

 ENDING FUND BALANCE TOTAL 08/31/12  

         

       $2,691,527.39  

Packet page 11 of 81



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

 12-13 FISCAL YEAR (PERPETUAL ACCOUNTING)

REVENUES UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED  UNDESIGNATED DESIGNATED DESIGNATED

Portable Saltars Cherrydale Yellow House DuPont Property Impact Bond
Sale Property Sale Property Sale Property Sale Property Sale  Other Fees Proceeds Total

$3,000.00 $986,196.62 $378,324.72 $0.00 $0.00  $    3,692,551.13 $881,461.74  $                     5,941,534.21 

Impact Fees $111,629.82  $                        111,629.82 
Investment Earnings  $         10,062.03  $                          10,062.03 
Other Revenues $217,985.00  $                        217,985.00 

$3,000.00 $986,196.62 $378,324.72 $0.00 $0.00 $3,920,598.16 $993,091.56 $0.00  $                     6,281,211.06 

EXPENDITURES UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED  UNDESIGNATED DESIGNATED DESIGNATED

Portable Saltars Cherrydale Yellow House DuPont Property Impact Bond
Sale Property Sale Property Sale Property Sale Property Sale  Other Fees Proceeds Total

Pioneer Middle School $654,771.75  $                        654,771.75 
Steilacoom High School $3,000.00  $       314,653.02  $                        317,653.02 
Chloe Clark Elementary  $         12,174.67  $                          12,174.67 
Anderson Is. Elementary  $                                        -   
Saltars Pt. Elementary  $                                        -   
Cherrydale Elementary $46,962.14  $                          46,962.14 
SHS North Property  $    1,797,674.58  $                     1,797,674.58 
Chambers Field $1,251.25  $                            1,251.25 
Bus Facility DuPont $9,519.41  $                            9,519.41 
Yellow House $637.50  $                               637.50 
SHS Stadium  $       747,713.11  $                       1,326.24  $                        749,039.35 

$3,000.00 $58,370.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,872,215.38  $                  656,097.99  $                    -    $                     3,589,683.67 

Portable Sale Saltar's Prop Sale Cherrydale Prop Sale Yellow House Prop Sale DuPont Property Sale  Other Funds Impact Fees Bond Proceeds

BALANCES $0.00 $927,826.32 $378,324.72 $0.00 $0.00 $1,048,382.78 $336,993.57 $0.00 $2,691,527.39 Packet page 12 of 81



Learning Funancials with LeeRae 11/2012 

Sale of Yellow House: 

 

Revenues Collected in October $143,148.86 

 

 

 

Sale of Property in DuPont: 

 

Revenues Collected in September 

$1,299,089.38 

Packet page 13 of 81



QUESTIONS?... 

Packet page 14 of 81



Packet page 15 of 81



Packet page 16 of 81



Packet page 17 of 81



Packet page 18 of 81



Packet page 19 of 81



Packet page 20 of 81



Packet page 21 of 81



Packet page 22 of 81



Packet page 23 of 81



Packet page 24 of 81



Packet page 25 of 81



Packet page 26 of 81



  
 
  

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board 
Meeting - Meeting Minutes 

11/14/2012 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

Pledge of Allegiance - led by Steilacoom Councilman Marion Smith. 
Roll Call - all Directors and Superintendent Fritz present. 
Approval of Agenda - Director Denning made a motion to approve the agenda with two 
modifications; one change in the 11.1.12 minutes and additional coach stipends added to Consent 
Agenda. Director Scott seconded the motion and the motion passed (5/0). Chair Winkler 
acknowledged Steilacoom Councilman Smith in the audience. 

II. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

• SHS XC Coach Henderson thanked the staff at the high school and the Board for support 
of the boys and girls cross country teams as they finished their year competing at the state 
meet. 

• SHS XC Coach Lange thanked the administration from the high school and the girls team 
parents for supporting the girls team. The Town of Steilacoom and City of DuPont issued 
a proclamation citing academic and athletic achievements concluding with a trip to the 
WIAA State Meet. Coach Lange read the proclamation and presented the Board with 
their team picture and a cake. 

• Nancy Covert, Lakewood, is pleased the school board is moving forward with the Old 
Pioneer Middle School renovation project. 

• Joanne Harrington, 1311 Nisqually, Steilacoom, happy to see work happening on the Old 
Pioneer building. 

• Jack Brake, Steilacoom, spoke to lend support for the Old Pioneer Middle School project. 
• Marion Smith, Steilacoom, was on the committee designated to review and make 

recommendations regarding the 511 Chambers (Old Pioneer project) and is in support of 
renovation of the old building. 

Packet page 27 of 81



III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Director Wong made a motion to approve the 10.24.12 regular board meeting minutes; 
Director Denning seconded the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 
Director Callanan made a motion to approve the 11.1.12 special board meeting minutes with one 
correction;     Director Scott seconded the motion and the motion passed (3/2/0). 

IV. REPORTS  

1. Financial Report  

Executive Director Ball presented a report explaining the year end (end of school year 
2011-12) financial report F196. 

V. CONSENT AGENDA  

Director Scott moved to approve the amended Consent Agenda; Director Denning seconded the 
motion and the motion passed (5/0). Approval of: 

• November 2012 Accounts Payable 
• November 2012 Estimated Payroll 
• Certification of Levy Rate 
• SIP Plans 2012-13 SY 
• Personnel Reports - attached 

VI. OLD BUSINESS  

1. Board Authority to Proceed with Old Pioneer Project  

Director Scott read Resolution 788-11-14-12, Old Pioneer Building Project - Phase I. Supt. 
Fritz recommends the approval of the resolution. Director Callanan moved to approve the 
resolution; Director Denning seconded the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

VII. NEW BUSINESS  

1. First Reading of Policy 6803 District Flag Lowering  

Superintendent Fritz introduced a new policy for the purpose of flag lowering 
guidelines following federal and state law. Director Scott made a motion to move the 
policy to a 2nd reading; Director Denning seconded the motion and the motion 
passed (5/0). 

 

 

Packet page 28 of 81



VIII. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

• Councilman Smith commented favorably on being a part of Focus on Education today. 
Invited elected officials visited the high school, Saltar's Point Elementary and Cherrydale 
Primary classrooms and asked and answered questions of students’ at all three schools. 

IX. BOARD COMMUNICATION  

• Chair Winkler and Supt. Fritz received a communication regarding transportation which 
Supt. Fritz is resolving. 

• Supt. Fritz received a communication regarding the high school athletic field 
loudspeakers 

X. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

• Director Callanan thanked students in attendance and the XC student athletes 
• Director Wong congratulated XC team 
• Director Denning participated in Focus on Education visit in the schools 
• Supt. Fritz  announced that Steilacoom High is  on the  College Board AP Honor Roll  
• Supt. Fritz attended Veterans Day Assemblies in the schools 
• Supt. Fritz congratulated to  the XC, Girls Swimming, Volleyball and Football student 

athletes 
• Supt. Fritz attended the Beyond High School event at SHS last night. It was well 

attended. 
• Supt. Fritz and Director Callanan visited CTE classes at SHS last week 
• Supt Fritz facilitated the Focus on Ed visits today 
• Chair Winkler introduced Larry Wilcox, Councilmember City of Dupont  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

Chair Winkler recessed the public meeting at 7:41 pm. The Board will go into Executive Session 
at 7:50 pm to review the performance of a public employee. 

XII. RETURN TO PUBLIC MEETING  

The Board returned to the public meeting at 9:30 pm. 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

Director Wong made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 pm; Director Callanan seconded 
the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

 

 

Packet page 29 of 81



  ________________________________ 
  (Chair) 
 
  ________________________________  
      
   
  ________________________________ 
 
   
  _______________________________  
________________________________ 
(Secretary/Superintendent)  
  ________________________________ 
 

 

 

Packet page 30 of 81



Packet page 31 of 81



Packet page 32 of 81



Packet page 33 of 81



Packet page 34 of 81



Packet page 35 of 81



Packet page 36 of 81



Packet page 37 of 81



Packet page 38 of 81



Packet page 39 of 81



Packet page 40 of 81



Packet page 41 of 81



Packet page 42 of 81



Packet page 43 of 81



Packet page 44 of 81



Packet page 45 of 81



Packet page 46 of 81



Packet page 47 of 81



Packet page 48 of 81



Packet page 49 of 81



Packet page 50 of 81



Packet page 51 of 81



Packet page 52 of 81



Packet page 53 of 81



Packet page 54 of 81



Packet page 55 of 81



Packet page 56 of 81



Packet page 57 of 81



Packet page 58 of 81



Packet page 59 of 81



Packet page 60 of 81



Packet page 61 of 81



Packet page 62 of 81



Packet page 63 of 81



Packet page 64 of 81



Washington Virtual Academy – 

Steilacoom Historical School District   

SY 2011-2012 ALE Report 
 

Packet page 65 of 81



Washington Virtual Academies Annual Report to  

Board of Directors  

 

Washington Virtual Academies  

2011-2012 School Year 

 

This annual report is required by the Steilacoom Historical School 

District #1 (SHSD) policy P4430 and per the ALE WAC 392-121-182. 

 

Packet page 66 of 81



Information Contained in this Report 

•  Ratio of Certificated Staff to Student FTE 

•  Washington Student Learning Plan (WSLP) 

•  WAVA’s support of the SHSD’s goals 

•  Washington State Assessment Information 

•  OSPI Digital Learning Department 

•  Self Evaluations 

 

Packet page 67 of 81



Ratio of Certificated Staff to Students  

•  Certificated Staff (teachers and counselors):  42.5 FTE 

•  Student Enrollment as of May 1, 2012:  1,560 Head Count 

             1339.35 FTE 

•  Negotiated CBA Ratio: 1:55 

 

 

Packet page 68 of 81



Description of Washington Student Learning Plan 

•  Developed and monitored by a Washington State Certificated HQ        

Teacher for each WAVA student 

•  Beginning and ending dates, hours per week, subject 

•  Specific learning goals and performance objectives 

•  Grade Level Expectations (GLE) 

•  Essential Academic Learning Requirements (EALR) 

•  Weekly reciprocal teacher to student contact 

•  Timeline and methods of evaluation 

•  Calculation components embedded to monitor attendance and 

progress goals for each month 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 69 of 81



Supporting the District’s Goals 

K12 Curriculum:  OLS Virtual Campus 

Headsprout: A K-2 supplemental phonetic reading program.  The 

program takes a non-reader or beginning reader up to mid-2nd Grade 

reading skills in an individualized online instruction.  Eighty printed 

stories and automated performance reports accompany the program. 

Study Island: This program is designed and built specifically to 

prepare students for the state assessments.  Additionally, it provides 

teachers with valuable diagnostic tools and information which enable 

the teacher to better prepare the students. 

Hotmath.com: Web based site that supports K12 curriculum.  

Gives help, hints and step by step directions for problems in middle 

school math. 

 

Packet page 70 of 81



Support Continued 

Scantron:  An online standards-based adaptive measurement.  

Scantron Corporation has developed Performance Series to be a 

placement and gains assessment that works with state and national 

standards. 

Class Outings 

Live Elluminate classes 

Neighborhood Face to Face Meetings 

Counselors, Social Skills Group 

7th and 8th grade students may take HS courses 

Assemblies: School wide 

 

 

 
Packet page 71 of 81



Support Continued 

Elluminates:  Academic, tutoring and supplemental 

Newsletter 

Art Show 

8th Grade Graduation 

Parent Orientation 

Writing Groups 

WAVA Winter Wonderland 

Science Fair 

Packet page 72 of 81



WA State Assessments and End of Course Exams 
WAVA-Steilacoom AMO  Summary: Met Participation Did Not Meet Proficiency 

Algebra 1 EOC MSP Results 

Summary of Improvements 

3rd Grade Math Improved 14.5% 

8th Grade Math Improved 7.6% 

7th Grade Reading Improved 13% 

5th Grade Science Improved 10.7% 

Packet page 73 of 81



OSPI Department of Digital Learning (DLD) 

SB 5410 requires that all school districts who serve more than 10% 

of non-resident students in an Alternative Learning Experience (ALE) 

obtain approval from the DLD as a requirement to receive state basic 

education apportionment. 

Steilacoom’s Washington Virtual Academy received approval from 

OSPI’s Department of Digital Learning as a Multidistrict Online 

School Program. 

Approval is valid thru the 2014-2015 school year. 

Accredited by the Northwest Accreditation Commission (NAAS) 

Packet page 74 of 81



OSPI DLD Parent Student Survey – Spring 2012 

WAVA-SHSD Parent Student Satisfaction Survey was 

administered and results made available in the spring of 

2012. A total of 138 responses were received. The complete 

results are available at  

 

https://digitallearning.k12.wa.us/approval/providers/survey/13 

Packet page 75 of 81

https://digitallearning.k12.wa.us/approval/providers/survey/13


Self Evaluations Conducted 

School Climate 

•There were two primary reasons given by parents of students who had 

withdrawn.  One,   the workload is not manageable and two, a return to the 

brick and mortar would be the preference. 

•Teacher Improvement 

•Teachers continue to indicate that professional development is a high priority 

and necessary in order to effectively deliver curriculum and services in a 

distance environment. 

•Teachers feel that the distance educational trends and management 

systems are changing rapidly and distance learning is a specialty.  High level 

of training is necessary to maintain teacher quality. 

•Teachers believe that the constant requirements of state compliance is a 

challenge. 

Academics: 

•Writing, Reading, Math and Science are the focus. 

 

Packet page 76 of 81



  Page 1 of 5 
  

Policy 2255 
Instruction 

 
ALTERNATIVE LEARNING EXPERIENCE 

 

INSTRUCTION 

A. Alternative Learning Experience Programs—General 

The Board of Directors recognizes that students with unique needs may experience enhanced 
academic success in a non-traditional school setting. The district supports an alternative learning 
experience-based program that offers a student-centered curriculum, varied instructional 
methods, delivery of curriculum materials and a flexible environment that responds to student 
needs. The student’s parent(s) or guardian, under appropriate district instruction and supervision, 
may provide this alternative experience, in part. 

The district shall provide alternative learning experience programs in accordance with state law 
and regulations, district policies and procedures, and available staff and program support. 

In order to provide students with alternative learning experience programs that meet these 
minimum requirements, the Board directs that students and/or their parent(s) or guardian may not 
participate in any alternative learning experience program, as defined under WAC 392-121-182, 
without the prior written approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee.   

B. Online School Programs—Washington Virtual Academy 

1. Introduction 

One form of alternative educational program that the district currently provides is an 
online school program, which is provided in whole or part outside the regular classroom setting, 
primarily via the internet and/or other electronic means.  As of the date that this policy is being 
adopted, that program is offered through an agreement (as later amended, the “K12 
Agreement”) that the district entered into on April 24, 2006 with K12 Washington L.L.C. and 
K12 Inc. (collectively, “K12”).  This Section B of this policy governs that program (the 
“Academy”). 

2. Programmatic Requirements 

(a) There shall be a written student learning plan for each student enrolled in the 
Academy, and each learning plan shall meet the minimum criteria set forth in WAC 392-
121-182(4). 

Packet page 77 of 81



  Page 2 of 5 
  

(b) The overall ratio of certificated instructional Academy staff to full-time 
equivalent students enrolled in the Academy shall be identified and approved by the 
Board of Directors in a public meeting at least once each year. 

(c) Student performance shall be supervised, monitored, assessed, evaluated, and 
recorded by Academy staff as follows:  

[i] Student performance is supervised and monitored through formal 
parent-teacher progress conferences at least once per 20 school days and weekly 
direct student-teacher contact, as provided in Section B.2.d. below; 

[ii] Student performance is assessed and evaluated based upon a mastery-
based instructional model that requires the passage of lesson, unit, and semester 
assessments at a minimum of 80% before moving onto more difficult concepts, 
achievement of monthly progress goals, and participation in district and State-
mandated academic assessments; and 

[iii] Student performance data is recorded through the Academy’s Online 
School web-based tool and students and parents have access to real time progress 
reports. A formal annual progress report is maintained in each student file. 

(d) Each student enrolled in the Academy shall have direct personal contact with 
Academy staff at least weekly, until the student completes the course objectives or the 
requirements of the learning plan. Direct personal contact shall be for the purposes of 
instruction, review of assignments, testing, reporting of student progress, or other 
learning activities. Direct personal contact may be accomplished through face-to-face 
meetings with the student and, where appropriate, the student's parent or guardian, 
including meetings at out-of-District locations identified by Academy staff, as further 
provided under Section C of this policy.  In addition, the Board of Directors hereby 
determines that direct personal contact with a student may also be accomplished through 
the use of telephone, e-mail, instant messaging, interactive video communication, or 
other means of digital communication, instead of a face-to-face meeting, because in the 
Board’s judgment such contact methods do not compromise educational quality, student 
health and safety, or the fiscal integrity of the district.  Direct personal contact between a 
parent and district staff may supplement, but shall not substitute for, the direct weekly 
student-staff contact required for ALE programs by law. 

(e) Each student's educational progress shall be reviewed at least monthly, and the 
results of each review shall be communicated to the student and if the student is in grades 
K–8, the student's parent or guardian. 

(f) Each student's parent(s) or guardian shall have responsibilities with respect to 
the student’s participation in the Academy, as set forth in the Academy’s annual Parent-
Student Handbook. 

Packet page 78 of 81



  Page 3 of 5 
  

(g) The District’s Superintendent is hereby designated to be the “Academy 
Supervisor” and shall be responsible for approving specific curriculum for the Academy 
pursuant to the K12 Agreement, monitoring the Academy’s and K12’s compliance with 
WAC 392-121-182, and reporting at least annually to the Board of Directors on the 
Academy. This annual report shall include at least the following: 

(i) Documentation of Academy student headcount and full-time equivalent 
enrollment claimed for basic education funding; 

(ii) A description of how certificated and classified staff are assigned 
Academy management and instructional responsibilities that maximize student 
learning, including the ratio of certificated instructional staff to full-time 
equivalent students; 

(iii) A description of how a written student learning plan pursuant to WAC 
392-121-182(4) is developed, and student performance is supervised and 
evaluated, by certificated staff; 

(iv) A description of how the Academy supports the district's overall goals 
and objectives for student academic achievement; and 

(v) Results of any self-evaluations conducted pursuant to Section B.6 of 
this Policy. 

(h) The Academy Supervisor is hereby directed to take such other steps with 
respect to the Academy as are required to satisfy the state board of education's 
requirements for courses of study and equivalencies (chapter 180-50 WAC). 

(i) No expenditures which are directly related to the written student learning plan 
and are paid by participants of the Academy shall be subject to reimbursement by the 
district. 

3. Implementation Standards for the Academy 

The Academy Supervisor shall implement the standards set forth in WAC 392-121-
182(3) with respect to the Academy, and K12 shall be required to comply with such standards 
with respect to the Academy.  Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, this 
includes implementation of the requirements of WAC 392-121-188, as required by WAC 392-
121-182(3)(d). 

4. Enrollment Reporting. 

The district shall comply with WAC 392-121-182(5) with respect to enrollment 
reporting.  This includes a requirement that the district document the district of each Academy 
student's physical residence, and shall establish procedures that address, at a minimum, the 
coordination of student counting for state funding so that no student is counted for more than one 

Packet page 79 of 81



  Page 4 of 5 
  

full-time equivalent in the aggregate.  As part of these procedures, District staff will maintain a 
checklist within the file for each student who participates in an ALE program, signed by an 
authorized representative from both the Academy and the District, for purposes of reviewing and 
verifying that the student’s file contains all the necessary documentation to substantiate that 
student’s enrollment reported to the state. 

5. Additional Implementation Standards for the Academy 

Evaluation and assessment of Academy students shall comply with WAC 392-121-
182(6). 

6. Program Evaluation 

The district shall engage in periodic self-evaluation of the Academy in a manner designed 
to objectively measure its effectiveness, including the impact of the Academy on student learning 
and achievement. Such self-evaluation shall follow a continuous improvement model, and may 
be implemented as part of the district's school improvement planning efforts. 

7. Annual Reporting 

The district shall report annually to the superintendent of public instruction on the types 
of programs and course offerings subject to WAC 392-121-182 (including the Academy), 
including student headcount and full-time equivalent enrollment claimed for basic education 
funding. The report shall identify the ratio of certificated instructional staff to full-time 
equivalent students enrolled in alternative learning experience courses or programs. The report 
shall separately identify the Academy and any other alternative learning experience program’s 
enrollment of students provided under contract pursuant to RCW 28A.150.305 and WAC 392-
121-188. 

8. Documentation 

The district shall maintain documentation for the Academy as required under WAC 392-
121-182(9) and as set forth in the procedures implementing this policy. 

9. Annual Staff Report & Policy Review 

The Academy Supervisor shall annually prepare a report to the Board of Directors on the 
Academy, pursuant to Section B.2.g. above.  The Board of Directors shall review this Policy at 
least annually. 

10. Annual Review 

The Board of Directors hereby directs the Academy Supervisor to provide a copy of this 
Policy to K12 promptly after its adoption. 

C. Authority for Academy Staff to Engage in Out-of-District Direct Personal Contact 

Packet page 80 of 81



  Page 5 of 5 
  

To preserve and to establish District programs and educational opportunities, the Board 
of Directors hereby authorizes Academy staff to meet with Academy students and their parents, 
if appropriate, at locations identified by Academy staff outside the territorial boundaries of the 
District, where such meetings: (1) promote K-8 education through digital alternative learning 
programs; (2) provide such learning experiences for students who do not reside within the 
District; and/or (3) are determined by the Academy Supervisor as necessary to meet the 
requirements under RCW 28A.150.262(11) of face-to-face contact for the purposes of 
instruction, review of assignments, testing, evaluation of student progress, or other learning 
activities.  The Board of Directors finds that providing Academy staff the authority to have out-
of-District direct personal contact with Academy students where and when the Academy 
Supervisor deem it necessary will support the educational mission of the District and/or promote 
the effective, efficient, or safe management and operation of the District.  Such out-of-District 
meetings shall be in the best interests of the District and shall not interfere with the operation of 
the District’s programs and functions.  Out-of-District meetings shall not be deemed to be in 
conflict with any applicable law and/or state or federal constitutional provisions.  

D. Other Alternative Learning Experience Programs 

 Any other alternative learning experience program approved by the District must comply 
with the applicable provisions of WAC 392-121-182, section B of this policy, and any other 
program-specific policies developed for such programs. 

 

Legal References: RCW 28A.150.262 

RCW 28A.250.010 

  

 RCW 28A.320.015 

WAC 392-121-182 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
School District Name:  Steilacoom Historical School District 
Revised:  10.13.10 

Packet page 81 of 81


	Cover Page (p.1)
	Agenda (p.2)
	Financial Report.pdf (p.4)
	Capital Project Report.pdf (p.15)
	Cash Flow.pdf (p.16)
	Budget Status Report.pdf (p.17)
	Minutes 11.14.12.pdf (p.27)
	Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf (p.31)
	Approval of November 2012 Accounts Payable.pdf (p.33)
	Approval of November 2012 Payroll.pdf (p.45)
	2nd reading of Policy 6803.pdf (p.48)
	Pierce County Skills Center Agreement.pdf (p.50)
	SHSD-WAVA ALE Report SY 2011-2012.pdf (p.65)
	Policy 2255 ALE.pdf (p.77)

